
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

MONDAY 15TH JANUARY 2018 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE 

 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), S. A. Webb (Vice-
Chairman), C. Allen-Jones, C. J. Bloore, S. R. Colella, M. Glass, 
C.A. Hotham, R. J. Laight, C. J. Spencer, P.L. Thomas and 
M. Thompson 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Named Substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements  
 
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm 
the nature of those interests. 
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 27th November 2017 (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

4. Transport Planning Report - Verbal Update  
 

(i) Discussion with Representatives from Worcestershire County Council 
Highways Team. 

(ii) Discussion with Representatives from Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services. 

 
5. Finance and Budget Working Group - Report to follow  

 
6. Measures Dashboard Working Group - Update  

 



- 2 - 

7. Task Group Updates  
 

8. Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Report (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

9. Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Update  
 

10. Cabinet Work Programme (Pages 15 - 22) 
 

11. Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme (Pages 23 - 26) 
 

12. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

Parkside 
Market Street 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B61 8DA 
 
4th January 2018 
 



- 3 - 

 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

 You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

 You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

 You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

 You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

 An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

 A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

 You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

 Meeting Agendas 
 Meeting Minutes 
 The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 
 

http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

27TH NOVEMBER 2017, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), S. A. Webb (Vice-Chairman), 
C. Allen-Jones, C. J. Bloore, M. Glass, C.A. Hotham, R. J. Laight, 
C. J. Spencer, M. Thompson and K. J.  Van Der Plank 
 

 Observers: Councillor P. J. Whittaker 
 

 Officers: Ms. J. Pickering, Mr. M. Dunphy and Ms. A. Scarce 
 
 
 

63/17   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor S. R. Colella and it 
was confirmed that Councillor K. Van der Plank was in attendance as 
substitute. 
 

64/17   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of any party whip. 
 

65/17   MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 
30th October 2017 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 30th October 2017 be approved as a correct 
record. 
 

66/17   FOOTBRIDGE ACROSS A38 - VERBAL UPDATE 
 
For those members who had not been at the last meeting of the Board, 
Councillor C. J. Bloore provided a summary of the discussion which had 
taken place and the concerns which had been raised in respect of the 
proposed footbridge over the A38, which had been recently highlighted 
in the local press.  This had been following announcement of funding 
which had been made available. 
 
Councillor Bloore confirmed that he had spoken to both the relevant 
officer and Portfolio Holder at Worcestershire County Council and the 
Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board had been assured that there 
were no firm agreement as to where the footbridge would be located and 
that as had been suggested at this Board’s meeting on 30th October, that 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

consideration would be given to the option of improvements to the area 
which affected Charford First School and Bromsgrove South High 
School. 
 
Councillor Bloore gave his thanks to Councillor R. Dent, the County 
Councillor for this area, who had offered her support in ensuring any 
works which were carried out were in the appropriate place and met the 
needs of the residents. 
 

67/17   PARKING ENFORCEMENT IN THE VICINITY OF SCHOOLS TASK 
GROUP - MEMBERSHIP 
 
Officers confirmed that following the previous meeting all Members (who 
were not Members of the Cabinet) were invited to join the Parking 
Enforcement in the Vicinity of Schools Task Group.  Notices of interest 
were received from a number of Members and the Board were asked to 
agree the Membership as detailed in the report.  It was also confirmed 
that the investigation would commence in late January/early February 
2018. 
 
RESOLVED that the following Councillors be appointed to the Parking 
Enforcement in the Vicinity of Schools Task Group; Councillors C. 
Bloore (Chairman), R. Dent, S. Colella, S. Shannon and C. Spencer. 
 

68/17   CABINET RESPONSE TO THE SOCIAL MEDIA TASK GROUP 
 
Officers confirmed that all recommendations from the Social Media Task 
Group had been agreed by Cabinet and discussions had been held with 
relevant officers in respect of implementation. 
 
It was highlighted that a trial of live streaming of items of the January full 
Council meeting was being considered and those to be included would 
be discussed with the Group Leaders prior to that meeting. 
 

69/17   FINANCE AND BUDGET WORKING GROUP - UPDATE 
 
The Chairman of the Finance and Budget Working Group confirmed that 
there had been one meeting since the previous report.  This had 
concentrated on looking at the budget assumptions, the fixed asset 
register, which included equipment, plant and land which was owned by 
the Council.  The Working Group had also taken the opportunity to catch 
up on a number of outstanding actions from previous meetings. 
 
A meeting of the Working Group would take place following this Board 
meeting. 
 

70/17   MEASURES DASHBOARD WORKING GROUP - UPDATE 
 
Councillor S. Webb, as Chairman of the Measures Dashboard Working 
Group, confirmed that after a slow start work was progressing nicely.  
Access to the Dashboard was now available on the iPads although 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

Members of the Working Group had chosen to look at this together, via 
the IT equipment in the Training Room.  A further meeting was planned 
for January when the Chairman of the Redditch Performance Scrutiny 
Board would be joining them to discuss the potential for joint working. 
 

71/17   TASK GROUP UPDATES 
 
Officers advised Members that following the previous meeting of the 
Board, when funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner was 
discussed, the CCTV Short Sharp Review had received an update form 
the relevant officers and had arranged a meeting for 5th December, 
when this would be discussed in more detail. 
 

72/17   WORCESTERSHIRE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - UPDATE 
 
Councillor C. Hotham, as the Council’s representative on the 
Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) 
confirmed he had attended its most recent meeting, which had been 
held jointly with the Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel when the budget had been discussed in some detail. 
 

73/17   CABINET WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Officers provided a number of updates in respect of the Cabinet 
Leader’s Work Programme, highlighting that a number of items would 
now be considered at the meeting of Cabinet on 10th January 2018.  It 
was also noted that the Bromsgrove Sports and Physical Activity 
Strategy had been put back to April 2018.  It was noted that the 
Industrial units Investment Business Case was already included on the 
Board’s Work Programme and that there was a possibility that this will 
slip back further. 
 
Members discussed the possibility of pre-scrutinising the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (Implementation of Provisions) 
report.  In this regard concerns were raised in respect of the Portfolio 
Holder and her connection to the Police and Crime Commissioner, which 
had been raised at the full Council meeting, held on 22nd November.  
Officers were asked to pass on the Board’s concerns outside of the 
meeting. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources advised that the Fees 
and Charges Report and the Monitoring and Efficiency Plan Update 
Report would be considered by the Finance and Budget Working Group. 
 
The Risk Management Strategy item was also discussed and the 
Executive Director, Finance and Resources explained that this was a 
strategy which set out how the Council dealt with risk and did not 
provided details of particular risks.  That item was considered by the 
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee, with a Risk Champion 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

being appointed to look at particular areas and report back to the 
Committee. 
 
Following further discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED that the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
(Implementation of Provisions, Risk Management Strategy and Sports 
and Physical Activity Strategy be added to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board’s Work Programme. 
 

74/17   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Chairman explained that there were a number of items which the 
Board would need to consider in detail as to whether it wished these to 
be added to its Work Programme. 
 
Sports Hall 
 
Councillor Bloore raised the matter of the Sports Hall, which had recently 
been reported in the local press.  Specific reference was made to the 
options which had been suggested in that article and that this Board had 
considered a number of reports on the new Leisure Centre and the need 
for a Sports Hall, together with updates on the displaced groups which 
used the Sports Hall and the contract arrangements with BAM.  This 
highlighted a number of questions in respect of the information the 
Board had received, recommendations which this Board had made 
through the Leisure Provision Task Group and which had been amended 
by the Cabinet in specific reference to this facility.  A number of further 
points were highlighted: 
 

 Whether the demolition of the old Dolphin Centre had been 
delayed (and any financial impact to the Council leading from 
this). 

 It was understood that long standing bookings for the next 4-6 
weeks had been confirmed. 

 Members had previously been assured that an agreement with 
BAM was imminent. 

 If a sports hall was now to be built or the old sports hall 
refurbished where the funds for this would be coming from. 

 The perception of the changes to residents in light of the 
concerns that had been raised by them at various meetings. 
 

Councillor Whittaker, as the Portfolio Holder for Leisure responded to the 
questions raised and confirmed that the school had a new Head Teacher 
who had informed the Council that the hall and gym would not be 
available during a 12 week exam period, due to changes to the GCSEs 
being based on yearly exams and as such she felt that it would be too 
much inconvenience for the school to have to remove and replace the 
chairs and tables for these exams every day.  The Portfolio Holder 
confirmed that whilst the draft agreement had been reached, contracts 
had not been signed by BAM.  In light of this the Council was now 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

looking at a number of options, including the potential to build a sports 
hall or to refurbish the current hall.  An option appraisal would be 
brought to Cabinet and then on to Council, it was hoped in January 
when all available options would be considered in detail. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources advised Members that 
this change was advised by the School and BAM to officers on 2nd 
November via an email, when it was explained that the daily removal 
and then set up of the desks for the exams was not acceptable for the 
environment that the students need for their exams.  The Executive 
Director, Finance and Resources had looked at a number of options and 
offered the School support in this matter in order to mitigate the loss of 
use to the Council, however after much discussion and meetings with all 
parties it became obvious that there was no room for negotiation on the 
12 week period being written into the agreement, although the Executive 
Director, Finance and Resources assured Members that the Council was 
still keen to come to some agreement with BAM. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources informed Members that 
she had today, 27th November, met with Engineers, to look at what could 
be done with the current sports hall, in the interim and confirmed that all 
options would be considered.  Reference was made to prudential 
borrowing which it was confirmed did not allow the Council to borrow 
further for this project at this time, but that all avenues would be 
considered and included within the options appraisal and a robust 
business case would be produced for Members consideration, this would 
include options for alternative funding and the use of reserves.  She had 
spoken to Sports England who were on board with the options appraisal 
and agreed that the loss of 12 weeks use of the facilities at BAM was not 
ideal. 
 
Following the comments from the Portfolio Holder and Executive 
Director, Finance and Resources Members discussed a number of 
further points: 
 

 The changes to the Portfolio Holder over recent years and that 
Councillor Whittaker had not been involved in the initial 
negotiations and the decision not to include a sports hall. 

 Why the Executive Director, Finance and Resources had been 
leading on this matter for the past 4 weeks, rather than the Head 
of Service. 

 The recommendations from the Leisure Provision Task Group 
and the changes made to the recommendation in respect of a 
sports hall by the Cabinet – this included if an agreement with 
BAM was not agreed then consideration be given to having a 
sports hall. 

 Not having the sports hall for 12 out of 52 weeks was not 
acceptable. 

 Why the contract with BAM had not been signed as had been 
indicated previously. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

 The reason behind the change of view from BAM and that they 
would have been aware of the situation in respect of exams when 
they went into negotiations with the Council some time ago.  It 
was explained that the school had reconsidered their needs and 
had proposed the change. 

 There was a clear timeline in respect of the options appraisal 
being considered by Council in order to move this matter forward.  
It was confirmed that this would be considered in January in time 
for any financial implications to be built into the budget. 

 Any penalties which would impact on the cost following the 
changes to the demolition of the old Dolphin Centre. 

 What has changed in order for the Council to now be considering 
building a sports hall or refurbishing the old one. 

 Whether the Board wished to look at that report for pre-scrutiny 
prior to its consideration at Council.  It was highlighted that it was 
important for the Board to have input into this process. 

 The use of the school sports hall in the interim and any breakout 
clause that would need to be written in to an agreement with 
them. 

 Members had been invited to attend a visit to the new Sports 
Centre and Councillor Hotham made particular reference to this, 
saying that he had visited and had been very impressed with the 
new Centre and congratulated those involved in its design. 

 The need to re-visit the Sports England initial report which had 
advised that there was no need for the sports hall as there was 
sufficient provision in the district and whether this report needed 
to be updated. 

 The real terms cost to the Council of now including a sports hall to 
the project.  This should include the potential loss of income from 
the sale of the land etc. 

 Concerns around rushing into investing more money into the 
project before looking back at what has happened and learning 
from those previous experiences. 

 It was confirmed that there was a small financial benefit to BAM 
from making the sports hall available, but not for the School. 

 Whether if there was some benefit to the School this would 
change the Head Teacher’s view on making it available.  The 
Executive Director, Finance and Resources confirmed that there 
was no negotiation on the availability. 

 Any pre-scrutiny work would not impact on any negotiations which 
were underway with contractors or BAM. 

 Whether the involvement of BAM was now being looked at as 
being a temporary fix or whether this would be a permanent 
solution. 

 The need for residents to be confident that this matter is being 
dealt with and kept up to date of progress. 

 The Board being supportive of the Executive Director, Finance 
and Resources during the process, however there would still be a 
need to speak to the relevant Head of Service during the Board’s 
investigation. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

 What the Board considers as part of this investigation and how 
this is dealt with – investigation as a whole Board would be most 
appropriate and looking at the options appraisal and lessons 
learnt would be an important part of it. 

 Costs associated with the demolition of the old Dolphin Centre, it 
was confirmed that whilst work was due to commence, this was in 
respect of the removal of asbestos from the old pool area in the 
first instance, so whilst there had been delays currently these 
were not as significant as could have been. 

 Everyone Active had agreed in principle to use the old sports hall 
and an agreement would be drawn up in this respect and any cost 
implications. 

 The need for open honest discussions to take place and for 
Members to be kept informed of any future developments. 
 

The timing of the investigation was considered as it was noted that the 
Board meeting in January was following the Cabinet, however it was 
agreed that any findings of the Board could be considered alongside the 
Cabinet report at full Council.  As there were a number of items due for 
consideration at the Board’s January meeting it may be that an 
additional meeting would be called if deemed necessary.  The Executive 
Director, Finance and Resources advised that the timing would be 
dependent on the feasibility study being undertaken. 
 
Transport Planning Report 
The Chairman referred Members to the previous Council meeting and 
the ongoing discussions in respect of the Transport Planning Report, 
which had originally been planned for submission to Council.  A paper 
had been tabled at this meeting (attached at appendix 1) which 
highlighted the areas which would be covered by that report and which 
would now be considered, in the first instance by this Board.  The 
Chairman was concerned that the report, which was scheduled to come 
to the Board’s 11th December meeting, would not address all the issues 
which had been raised over a number of months, with a view to the 
Board making recommendations to the Cabinet meeting due to be held 
on 10th January.  The aim of discussion this item this evening, was to 
ensure that all areas that Members wanted to be included would be 
covered and to suggest that, as this was such an important matter which 
impacted on all Members that they be invited to attend that meeting. 
 
The Chairman invited the Strategic Planning and Conservation Manager 
the opportunity to discuss this with the Board and highlight the areas 
which the report would cover.  Reference was made to the work which 
had been carried out by Mott McDonald and the analysis of traffic counts 
and the Barham model together with a response to Worcestershire 
County Council on the points which had been tabled at the previous 
Council meeting.  During the following discussion Members gave their 
views and discussed a number of points in detail: 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

 The data that had been gathered over the previous months’ 
counts and the option for data in the wider spectrum rather than 
as a snapshot. 

 Relevant officers being present at the 11th December, including 
those from Worcestershire County Council (WCC) as they would 
be in a better position to respond to questions. 

 Not simply looking at what the data is currently but also what it 
would look like in 2030 due to the impact of the future 
developments and projections. 

 The need to have confidence in the figures and the implications of 
the growth in the full report. 

 Full data sets being requested from WCC under a Freedom of 
Information applications and this being refused – it would be 
helpful to understand why this was the case and whether they 
were now willing to release that information. 

 Provide a report which both Members and residents can 
understand and have confidence in the information being correct 
within it. 

 An explanation as to why the previous WCC/model assumptions 
were possibly inaccurate, including the information contained in 
the TA for the Hanover Street development. 

 Consideration should be given to the future needs of Bromsgrove, 
including the potential for a western distributor road and details of 
the A38 major scheme proposals. 

 The Strategic Planning and Conservation Manager explained that 
it was broader than just the traffic counts or the data from WCC 
and those future developers are required to draw up plans to 
mitigate any outcomes from their developments by drawing up 
transport plans. 

 This predicated the information based on TEMPro from the 
Department of Transport using their models and data. 

 All the information gathered together would impact on the future 
site selection and therefore the Council must be confident that it 
has used the right information and understands the impact. 

 Officers at WCC had already commented that Bromsgrove was 
“full up” and was close to breaking point. 

 Members understood from Planners the focus of the May/June 
data. 

 The concern was how the Council got houses built which were 
already planned and whether the delay would cause problems for 
the Planning Department and the potential for this to lead to the 
Council to be placed in designation status once more. 

 Site of the letter which was sent to WCC in respect of LTP4 as 
detailed in the Council minutes dated 26th April and whether a 
response had been received to this.  

 Audit trails on previous transport mitigation measures for example 
once scheme have been implemented whether they have done 
what WCC/Developers hoped they would do.  It appeared that 
there was no monitoring of what happened next. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
27th November 2017 

 

 Members raised concerns about air quality levels in the district, 
which were already high and requested that the future protection 
and any mitigation strategy for air quality as a result of future 
developments be provided.  Input from Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services (WRS) was essential to get a full picture of the impact of 
developments on the District. 

 Reference was made to Redditch Road air quality in particular 
which WRS were aware of and which appeared to be getting 
worse. 

 Members were keen to ensure that this report was treated 
separately from the planning application process and that this 
report does not prevent work being done on the planning 
applications or Planning Committee decision making process. 

 The impact on the Council’s review of the Local Plan. 

 The need for all the relevant information and officers to be 
available to Members in order that they can make the right 
decision and the developments are in the right places. 

 
Following lengthy discussion the Chairman summed up and confirmed 
that what he understood was currently in the report, was not sufficient 
and did not respond to all the questions raised by Members.  It was 
therefore suggested that this should be included within the Board’s Work 
Programme for a meeting in January 2018 (to be determined at a later 
date, as it was accepted that it may be that an additional meeting 
needed to be held to consider this matter on its own) with all relevant 
stake holders present to respond to further questions where necessary. 
 
RESOLVED that the items as detailed in the pre-amble above be 
included within the Board’s Work Programme. 
 

The meeting closed at 8.15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD  15 January 2018 

 
 
SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION PROPOSAL 
  

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor B. Cooper – Finance and 
Enabling 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Not at this stage 

Relevant Head of Service for 
Overview and Scrutiny 

Claire Felton – Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services 

Wards Affected All wards 

Ward Councillor Consulted No – not at this stage 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 An Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Form relating to Turning 

Bromsgrove District Council Paperless has been completed by 
Councillor B. Cooper and is submitted for consideration by the Board.
  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Board considers the completed proposal form (at Appendix 1) 

and agrees to one of the following: 
 
(a) that further information be requested from a relevant source 

before deciding whether or not further investigation is required;  
(b) that the topic is included on the work programme for further 

investigation at a future date; 
(c) that the topic is included on the work programme and a Task 

Group is established to undertake a more in-depth investigation, 
appoint a Chairman for the Task Group and set a time scale for 
completion of the investigation;  or 

(d) take no further action. 
  
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 There are no financial implications directly relating to this report, 

however, if the proposal is accepted, any implications would be 
considered as part of the subsequent investigation undertaken. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD  15 January 2018 

 
3.2 There are no legal implications directly relating to this report, however, 

if the proposal is accepted, any implications would be considered as 
part of the subsequent investigation undertaken. 
 

 Service/Operation Implications 
 
3.3 An Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Form relating to the Turning 

Bromsgrove District Council Paperless has been completed by 
Councillor B. Cooper. 

 
3.4 If the Board decides that it does wish to investigate this topic further, it 

then needs to decide whether it is appropriate for the Board itself to 
undertake the investigation or whether a more in-depth investigation is 
required and a task group established. 

 
3.5 Another option is for the Board to request further information on the 

topic from a relevant source to assist Members to decide whether an 
investigation is required. 

 
3.6 Alternatively, the Board could decide that it is not a topic it wishes to 
 investigate, in which case no further action would be required.    
 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.7 N/A 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 N/A 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Overview and Scrutiny Proposal Form   
   
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 

7. KEY 
 
None 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Amanda Scarce – Senior Democratic Services Officer 
E Mail: a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 881443 

Page 12

Agenda Item 8

mailto:a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


September 2014 

 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TOPIC PROPOSAL 

This form can be used for either a Task Group or a Short Sharp Review topic 

proposal.   

Completed forms should be returned to scrutiny@bromsgrove.gov.uk – 

Democratic Services, Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
Name of Proposer: Cllr Dr Brian Cooper 
 

Tel No:07711014820 
 

Email:b.cooper@bromsgrove.gov.uk 

Date:18/12/2107 
 

 

Title of Proposed Topic  
 
(including specific subject 
areas to be investigate) 
 

Paperless Bromsgrove - reducing paper generated 
for Bromsgrove District Council meetings  

Background to the 
Proposal 
  
(Including reasons why this 
topic should be investigated 
and evidence to support the 
need for the investigation.) 
 

Paper copies of reports, agendas, minutes etc are 
produced for members sitting on  every committee of 
the Council. This costs money for paper, storage, 
photocopying and postage as well as the 
considerable use of officer time in printing, collating 
and circulating the papers.  
By turning the Council’s meetings paperless, there 
would be great savings in costs and officer time 

Links to national, regional 
and local priorities  
 
(including the Council’s 
strategic purposes) 
 

Helping to make the Council financially viable by 
reducing costs. 
Reducing paper consumption would be good for the 
environment. 
 

Possible Key Objectives 
 
(these should be SMART – 
specific, measurable, 
achievable, relevant and 
timely) 
 

 Cost benefit analysis for going paperless. 

 Review of Members use of iPads 

 Determine whether the Council’s IT equipment 
will facilitate paperless Bromsgrove. 

 Pilot study whereby one or two council 
meetings go paperless, with a review of 
advantages and disadvantages after a trial 
period eg12 months. 

Anticipated Timescale for 
completion of the work. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8

mailto:scrutiny@bromsgrove.gov.uk


September 2014 

 

Would it be appropriate to 
hold a Short Sharp Inquiry or 
a Task Group? (please tick 
relevant box) 
 

Task 
Group 

 Short 
Sharp 
Inquiry 

 

 

 

OFFICE USE ONLY -  TO BE COMLETED WHEN THE TOPIC PROPOSAL 

IS ACCEPTED  

Evidence 
 

Key documents, data, reports 
 

 

Possible Site Visits 
 

 

Is a general press release 
required asking for general 
comments/suggestions from 
the public? 
 

 

Is a period of public 
consultation required? 
 

 

Witnesses 
 

Officers 
 

 

Councillors (including 
Portfolio Holder) 
 

 

Any External Witnesses 
 

 

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



CABINET LEADER’S WORK PROGRAMME 
 

1 FEBRUARY 2018 TO 31 MAY 2018 
(published as at  2

nd
 January 2018)  

 
This Work Programme gives details of items on which key decisions are likely to be taken in the coming four months by the Council’s Cabinet 

 
The Work Programme gives details of items on which key decisions are likely to be taken by the Council’s Cabinet, or full Council, in the coming 
four months. Key Decisions are those executive decisions which are likely to: 
 
(i) result in the Council incurring expenditure, foregoing income or the making of savings in excess of £50,000 or which are otherwise 

significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 
(ii) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the district;  
 
If you wish to make representations on the proposed decision you are encouraged to get in touch with the relevant report author as soon as 
possible before the proposed date of the decision.  Contact details are provided, alternatively you may write to the Head of Legal, Equalities 
and Democratic Services, Parkside, Market Street, B61 8DA or e-mail: democratic@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
 
The Cabinet’s meetings are normally held every four weeks at 6pm on Wednesday evenings at Parkside.  They are open to the public, 
except when confidential information is being discussed.  If you wish to attend for a particular matter, it is advisable to check with the 
Democratic Services Team on (01527 881443) to make sure it is going ahead as planned.  If you have any queries Democratic Services 
Officers will be happy to advise you.  The full Council meets in accordance with the Councils Calendar of Meetings.  Meetings commence at 
6pm. 
 
CABINET MEMBERSHIP   

Councillor G. N. Denaro Leader of the Council without Portfolio Holder (Retaining Overarching Governance/Policy and Performance/HR 
 Councillor K. J. May Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, the Town Centre and Strategic Partnerships 
Councillor B. T. Cooper 
Councillor M. A. Sherrey 
Councillor C. B. Taylor 

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling 
Portfolio Holder for Health and Well Being and Community Safety 
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Strategic Housing 

Councillor P. J. Whittaker 
 

Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Cultural Services, Environmental Services and Regulatory Services  
 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 10

mailto:democratic@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

 

Details of Exempt 
information (if 

any) and 
information 

explaining why 
items have been 

postponed (where 
available) 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

 

Air Quality Management 
Area - Kidderminster Road, 
Hagley - Potential 
Revocation 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Head of 
Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services 
 

Simon Wilkes, Head of 
Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services 
 
 
Councillor P. J. Whittaker 
 

Industrial Units Investment 
- Outline Business Case 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 
Council 25 Apr 2018 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive 
 

Dean Piper, Head of North 
Worcestershire Economic 
Development and 
Regeneration 
Tel: 01562 732192 
 
Councillor K. J. May 
 
 
 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 10



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

 

Details of Exempt 
information (if 

any) and 
information 

explaining why 
items have been 

postponed (where 
available) 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

Medium Term Finance 
Plan 2018/19 - 2021/2022 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 
Council 21 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Executive 
Director, Finance and 
Corporate Resources 
 

Jayne Pickering, Executive 
Director (Finance and 
Corporate Resources) 
Tel: 01527 881207 
 
Councillor B. T. Cooper 
 
 
 

Pay Policy Statement 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 
Council 21 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Head of Business 
Transformation and 
Organisational Development 
 

Becky Talbot, Human 
Resources and Development 
Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 
 
Councillor G. N. Denaro 
 
 
 

Performance Report 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Head of 
Transformation and 
Organisational Development 
 

Deb Poole, Head of Business 
Transformation 
Tel: 01527 881256 
 
Councillor G. N. Denaro 
 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 10



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

 

Details of Exempt 
information (if 

any) and 
information 

explaining why 
items have been 

postponed (where 
available) 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

Sports Hall Feasibility 
Options Appraisal 
Key: No 

Cabinet Not before 7th Feb 
2018 
 
Council Not before 7th Feb 
2018 
 

 Report of the Executive 
Director, Finance and 
Resources 
 

Jayne Pickering, Executive 
Director (Finance and 
Corporate Resources) 
Tel: 01527 881207 
 
Councillor P. J. Whittaker 
 
 
 

Treasury Management 
Strategy 2018/19 - 2021/22 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 
Council 21 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Executive 
Director, Finance and 
Corporate Resources 
 

Jayne Pickering, Executive 
Director (Finance and 
Corporate Resources) 
Tel: 01527 881207 
 
Councillor B. T. Cooper 
 
 
 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 10



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

 

Details of Exempt 
information (if 

any) and 
information 

explaining why 
items have been 

postponed (where 
available) 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

Risk Management Strategy 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 
Council 25 Apr 2018 
 

 Report of the Executive 
Director, Finance and 
Corporate Resources 
 

Jayne Pickering, Executive 
Director (Finance and 
Corporate Resources) 
Tel: 01527 881207 
 
Councillor B. T. Cooper 
 
 
 

Worcestershire Office for 
Data and Analytics 
(WODA) 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Head of Business 
Transformation and 
Organisational Development 
 

Deb Poole, Head of Business 
Transformation 
Tel: 01527 881256 
 
Councillor G. N. Denaro 
 

Flexible Homelessness 
Support Grant (Including 
Homelessness Reduction 
Act New Burdens Funding) 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Head of 
Community Services 
 

Derek Allen, Strategic Housing 
Manager, Amanda Glennie, 
Strategic Housing Officer 
Tel: 01527 881278, Tel: 01527 
881269 
 
Councillor C. B. Taylor 
 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 10



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

 

Details of Exempt 
information (if 

any) and 
information 

explaining why 
items have been 

postponed (where 
available) 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

Review of the Capital 
Programme 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Feb 2018 
 
Council 21 Feb 2018 
 

 Report of the Executive 
Director Finance and 
Resources 
 

Jayne Pickering, Executive 
Director (Finance and 
Corporate Resources) 
Tel: 01527 881207 
 
Councillor B. T. Cooper 
 
 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 
2014 (Implementation of 
Provisions) 
Key: No 

Cabinet 7 Mar 2018 
 
Council 25 Apr 2018 
 

 Report of the Head of 
Community Services 
 

Bev Houghton, Community 
Safety Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 
 
Councillor M. A. Sherrey 
 
 
 

CCTV Short Sharp Review 
Key: No 

Cabinet 11 Apr 2018 
 

 Report of the Chair of the 
CCTV Short Sharp Review 
 

Amanda Scarce, Senior 
Democratic Services Officer 
(Bromsgrove) 
Tel: 01527 881443 
 
Councillor M. A. Sherrey 
 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 10



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

 

Details of Exempt 
information (if 

any) and 
information 

explaining why 
items have been 

postponed (where 
available) 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

Bromsgrove Sports and 
Physical Activity Strategy 
Key: No 

Cabinet 11 Apr 2018 
 

This item has 
slipped from 10 
January 2018 due 
to changes in the 
way activity levels 
are monitored by 
Sport England 

Report of the Head of Leisure 
and Culture 
 

John Godwin, Head of Leisure 
and Cultural Services 
Tel: 01527 881762 
 
Councillor P. J. Whittaker 
 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  1  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

2017/18 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Board considers and agrees the work programme and updates it 
accordingly.  
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

Additional 
Information 

15/01/18 Transport Planning Report – pre-scrutiny  

Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014 (Implementation of Provisions) 

Picked up from 
Cabinet Leader’s Work 
Programme 27/11/17 

Industrial Units Investment Outline 
Business Case 

Picked up from 
Cabinet Leader’s Work 
Programme 13/06/17 

Working Group Updates – 
Finance & Budget 
Measures Dashboard 

 

Task Group/Short Sharp Review 
Updates: 

 CCTV Short Sharp Review 

 Parking Enforcement in the Vicinity 
of Schools Task Group 

 

O&S Recommendation Tracker  

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee – update from Representative 

 

Cabinet  Leader’s Work Programme  

O&S Board Work Programme  

12/02/18 Safeguarding and Early Help – an 
Overview of the Worcestershire County 
Council Priority Plan. 
(All Members to be invited to attend) 

 

Leisure Centre Sports Hall Options 
Appraisal – Pre-scrutiny 

 

Working Group Updates – 
Finance & Budget 
Measures Dashboard 

 

Task Group/Short Sharp Review 
Updates: 

 CCTV Short Sharp Review 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 11



 

  2  

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

Additional 
Information 

 Parking Enforcement in the Vicinity 
of Schools Task Group 

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee – update from Representative 

 

Cabinet  Leader’s Work Programme  

O&S Board Work Programme  

26/03/18 Bromsgrove Sports and Physical Activity 
Strategy 

Picked up from 
Cabinet Leader’s Work 
Programme 27/11/17 

Hospital Car Parking Charges – Board 
Investigation (Led by Councillor C. 
Bloore) 

Requested following 
notice of motion at 
Council 19/07/17 

Working Group Updates – 
Finance & Budget 
Measures Dashboard 

 

Task Group/Short Sharp Review 
Updates: 

 CCTV Short Sharp Review 

 Parking Enforcement in the Vicinity 
of Schools Task Group 

 

Scrutiny of the Crime and Disorder 
Partnership.  

 

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee – update from Representative 

 

Cabinet  Leader’s Work Programme  

O&S Board Work Programme  

23/04/18 Overview & Scrutiny Board Annual 
Report and Review of the Work of the 
Board (including the role of the working 
groups). 

 

CCTV Short Sharp Review Report  

Task Group/Short Sharp Review 
Updates: 

 Parking Enforcement in the Vicinity 
of Schools Task Group 

 

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee – update from Representative 

 

Cabinet  Leader’s Work Programme  

O&S Board Work Programme  

 
Meeting Dates 2018/19 
 
Thursday 24th May 2018 
Monday 18th June 2018 

Page 24

Agenda Item 11



 

  3  

Monday 30th July 2018 
Monday 3rd September 2018 
Monday 1st October 2018 
Monday 29th October 2018 
Monday 3rd December 2018 
Monday 14th January 2019 
Monday 11th February 2019 
Monday 4th March 2019 
Monday 8th April 2019 
 
Updates Received - Monthly 
 
The Council’s representative on the Worcestershire Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (who must be a member of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board) provides a verbal update to the Board each month. 
 
The Council’s representative on any Joint Scrutiny Task Group’s will be expected 
to provide an update (verbal or written) on the work of that Group at each Board 
meeting. 
 
The Chairman of any Working Group, Task Group or Short Sharp Review set up 
by the Board will be expected to provide a written or verbal update in respect of 
the work being carried out and progress of the investigation by the Group 
Members. 
 
Reports to be Received  by the Board (at its discretion) 
 
Write Off of Debts Report          (last report received by Finance & 

Budget Working Group on 9th November 2017)) 
Sickness Absence Performance - biannually (last report received 31/10/16) 
Making Experiences Count    (last report received 27/06/16) 
Summary of Environmental Enforcement  (last report received 08/08/16) 
 
Planning Backlog Data 
 
With effect from 30th October 2017 to be circulated to Members of the Board and 
if they have any concerns to notify Democratic Services Officer and ask for it to 
be placed on the agenda for a future meeting: 
 
31st March   
30th September  
 
Scrutiny of Crime & Disorder Partnership  
 
The Board must hold at least one meeting at which it considers the scrutiny of 
Crime and Disorder Partnership (last done on 27th March 2017). 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



 

  4  

When considering topics for investigations Members may wish to take into 
account the Council’s Strategic Purposes as detailed 
below:

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 11


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 27th November 2017
	8 Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Report
	Paperless Bromsgrove 20171215 BC

	10 Cabinet Work Programme
	11 Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme

